786 SMART FUND
ANNUAL REPORT
2020

786 Smart Fund

Corporate Information

02

Mission Statement

03

Report of the Directors of the Management Company

04
12

Report of the Fund Manager

13

Details of Pattern of Holdings (Units)

18

Report of the Shariah Advisor

19

Trustee Report to the Certificate Holders

20

Independent Auditors Report to the Unit Holders

21

Financial Statements:
Statement of Assets and Liabilities

25

Income Statement

26

Statement of Comprehensive Income

27

Statement of Movement in Unit Holders Fund

28

Cash Flow Statement

29

Notes to the Financial Statements

30

Six Year Financial Summary

55

Proxy Issued By The Fund

56

786 Smart Fund

CORPORATE INFORMATION
Management Company

786 Investments Limited
G-3 Ground Floor, B.R.R. Tower, Hassan Ali Street,
Off I.I. Chundrigar Road, Karachi - 74000 Pakistan
Tel: (92-21) 32603751-54
Email: info@786investments.com
Website: www.786investments.com

Board of Directors

Ms. Shafqat Sultana
Miss Tara Uzra Dawood
Ms. Charmaine Hidayatullah
Mr. Ahmed Salman Munir
Syed Shabahat Hussain
Mr. Tahir Mehmood
Syed Farhan Abbas

Chief Financial Officer &
Company Secretary

Chairperson
Chief Executive Officer
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director

Mr. Noman Shakir

Audit Committee

Syed Shabahat Hussain
Mr. Tahir Mehmood
Syed Farhan Abbas

Chairman
Member
Member

Human Resource
Commitee

Ms. Shafqat Sultana
Miss Tara Uzra Dawood
Mr. Tahir Mehmood

Chairperson
Member
Member

Trustee:

MCB Financial Services Limited
4th Floor, Pardasi House,
2/1 R-Y old Queens Road,
Karachi

Auditors

Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman
Chartered Accountants

Legal Advisor

Rauf & Ghaffar Law Associates (Advocates & Consultants)
Suite # 65, 5th Floor, Fareed Chamber,
Abdullah Haroon Road,
Saddar  Karachi, Pakistan.

Registrars

F.D. Registrar Services (SMC-Pvt.) Ltd.
Office# 1705, 17th Floor Saima Trade Tower. A,
I.I. Chundrigar Road, Karachi-74000, Pakistan.

Banker:

Dubai Islamic Bank Limited
BankIslami Pakistan Limited

Rating

PACRA: AA-(f)

02

786 Smart Fund

Mission Statement
To offer our unit holders the best
possible return by expertly diversifying the
Funds investment portfolio into minimal
risk and high yielding instruments and at
all time to be a good corporate citizen.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS OF THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY
The Board of Directors of 786 Investments Limited. ("786" or the "Company") the Management Company of 786
Smart Fund formerly (Dawood Income Fund) is pleased to present the annual report and the audited financial
statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2020.
Economic Review:
Pakistan's debt burden used to be already significant, and the post COVID-19 situation has made it nearly impossible
for it to service the massive debt comparable to a number of developing countries. So far, Pakistan has managed
to attain a loan worth USD 1.4 bn under the Rapid Financing Instrument. Pakistan Institute of Development
Economics and the World Bank have estimated large increase in poverty rate. Pakistan's economy is predicted
to witness an adverse GDP growth of 0.4% in the current fiscal year as against positive 3.3% in FY19, particularly
due to the effect of COVID-19 currency devaluation and inflationary pressures were the primary reason for the
negative growth rate. Investment to GDP ratio was 15.4% for third quarter 20 vs 15.6% for the same period last
year. National Savings to GDP was 13.9% for 9m20 compared to 10.8% for the same period last year. The reduction
in the Saving-Investment Gap was possible due to reduction of trade deficit and increase in workers remittances.
The fine increase in agriculture recorded a strong growth of 2.7% which is considerably higher than the 0.6%
achieved in the past year The crop sector experienced a significant growth of 3.0% due to the increase in the
growth of major crops (wheat, rice, maize, sugarcane, cotton) by 2.9% Agricultural credit as at 9m20 was PKR
912 B which is 13.3% higher than same period last year. The industrial and services sectors has been estimated
at -2.6% mainly due to a -8.8% and -7.8% plunge in the mining & quarrying and large-scale manufacturing sectors
respectively. The services sector was also significantly impacted due to the lockdown situation in the country,
especially the Wholesale & Retail Trade and Transport Sectors, which declined by -3.4% and -7.1% respectively.
To stimulate growth, the government has announced a PKR 1.2 trillion fiscal stimulus package and a construction
industry related package which includes tax exemptions, an amnesty scheme and PKR 30 B subsidy.
In FY20, the government approved the first-ever E-Commerce (EC) policy framework. SBP states that Pakistan
can increase its GDP by USD 36 B and create 4 million jobs by 2025 via an increase in the use of digital financial
services alone.
During FY20, the government decided to privatize 33 state owned entities including six public sector enterprises.
During FY20, some CPEC projects achieved their commercial operation date. These include the Hubco & Engro
Coal Projects, as well as substantial portions of road projects namely the Peshawar- Karachi motorway & KKH
Phase-II road. Given the impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic, sustaining the focus and pace on CPEC, in its
present state, seems difficult.
Pakistan's current account deficit shrunk to USD 3.3 B in 10m20, as in contrast to USD 11.5 B in the identical
period last year, registering a decline of 71%. This contraction is attributable to a reduction in imports by means
of 17% and will increase in remittances by means of 5.6%. Over the last five years, remittances have grown by
way of a CAGR of approximately 7% providing robust support to current account balance in opposition to trade
deficit. During the period 10m20, remittances grew by means of 5.5% to USD 19 B in contrast to USD 18 B in
10m19. The average CPI for 11m20 was 10.9%, as in contrast to the average inflation of 6.7% at some point of
the identical period last year. IMF forecasts inflation to reduce to 9% in the following year. Pakistan's total
revenue registered a growth of 31% during 9m20, while expenditure increased by 16% resulting in decline in the
fiscal deficit from 5.1% in 9m19 to 4% in 9m20.
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Money Market Review:
The average inflation rate in Pakistan stood at approximately 11% for 11m20. The inflation peaked to 14.6% on
January 20 which was an end result of energy tariff adjustments and the adoption of the market-based exchange
rate. A downward trend was determined in inflation after January, whereby, it reduced in size to 8.2% on May
20 registering a drop of 6% in the closing 4 months due to declining oil prices and falling demand due to pandemic.
The rate of decline, however, decreased on May 20 in contrast to prior months as an end result of a spike in prices
of some essential food items offsetting the influence of reduced petroleum product prices. The declining inflation
rate has given room to SBP which has aggressively slashed the policy rate to 8%. The policy price was once kept
on the greater side at 13.25% from July 19 until March 20 to contain inflation.
The depreciation of PKR for the 11m20 towards USD was 3.2% as compared to 21.7% the identical period last
year. On April 20, PKR recorded its historic low of 167.9 towards USD exceptionally reflecting the ongoing
COVID-19 crisis and the reduction in the policy rate.
In secondary markets, T-bill 3 months, 6 months and 12 months yields were down in the range of 60bps to 89bps,
whereas a mixed trend was witnessed in PIB yields. PIB 3 years was down by 4 bps (7.53%), 5 years yield was
up by 20 bps to 8.11% and 10 years PIB yield was also increased by 18 bps to close at 8.69%. In the primary
market, two T-bill auctions and PIB oater auctions were conducted closing of the year 2020. In total PKR 390
billion were accepted against a target and maturity of PKR 520 billion & PKR 485 billion respectively. A fixedrate PIB auction was also conducted in which participation was witnessed at PKR 177 billion against a target of
PKR 140 billion; SBP accepted PKR 112 billion across all tenors.
The country's total foreign exchange reserves fell 10% to USD 16.9 billion on May 20 placing extra pressure on
the currency due to outflows. Post COVID-19 crisis, remittances being a fundamental support for the CAD of
Pakistan are predicted to decline due to the sluggish growth in advanced economies thereby having a negative
have an impact on PKR.
Future Outlook
The financial year 2021 is expected to continue to be underneath the shadow of the pandemic. The IMF has
anticipated a tremendous increase of 2% but this seems constructive at this stage. Inflation is expected to stay low
as given the suppressed demand and falling global commodity prices. SBP policy rate is predicted to be reduced
similarly given the decrease inflation blended with the need to jump-start the economy. PKR is expected to
depreciate in addition towards the USD. The extent of such depreciation relies upon mainly on debt restructuring
initiatives.
Remittances are expected to be lower due to the negative impact on the Pakistani employees in Middle Eastern
countries both due to the pandemic as well as declining oil prices. Exports are expected to be extensively impacted
in the coming fiscal 12 months on the grounds that Pakistan's main export destinations, China, UK, US, France,
Italy, Spain, and Germany, are among the countries most affected through the COVID-19 pandemic. Imports are
expected to remain suppressed due to decrease economic undertaking and decreased oil prices. Compliance with
FATF conditionalities continues to be an essential factor and whilst the government is confident, all efforts need
to be made to obtain most feasible compliance ahead of the evaluation in September 2020.
Fund Performance
As at June 30, 2020, net assets were Rs. 626.50 million as compared to Rs. 445.69 million as at June 30, 2019.
Total operating income for the year was Rs. 62.97 million as compared to Rs. 62.02 million for the same period
last year. Total expenses during the year were Rs. 12.65 million as compared to Rs. 11.59 million last year. The
net profit for the financial year 2020 was Rs. 39.24 million, as compared to Rs. 38.90 million last year. The Net
Asset Value per unit was Rs. 81.00 as at June 30, 2020.
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Future Plans:
786IL is building a strategy focused on times of COVID-19, and in anticipation of post COVID-19, with a focus
on ease of both operations and customer access to information and our team, during periods of lockdown and with
an emphasis on virtual, safer communications and elimination of paper for reasons of health and safety, as well
as to be a more sustainable, purpose-driven, eco-friendly role model among asset management companies.
Our objective for the year is to grow Asset under Managements (AUM) through an effective virtual, social media
driven sales strategy.
Corporate Governance and Financial Reporting Framework
The Directors are pleased to state as follows:
The financial statements, prepared by the company, present its state of affairs fairly, the result of its
operations, cash flows and changes in equity.
Proper books of account have been maintained by the company.
Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial statements and
accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.
International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation
of financial statements and any departures there from has been adequately disclosed and explained.
The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored
with ongoing efforts to improve it further.
There are no significant doubts upon the company's ability to continue as a going concern.
There has been no material departure from the best practices of Corporate Governance except as disclosed
in the statement of compliance annexed with these financial statements.
There has been no trading during the year in the units of the Fund carried out by the Directors, Chief
Executive Officer, Company Secretary and their spouses and their minor children except as disclosed
in the relevant notes to the financial statement.
There is no statutory payment on account of taxes, duties, levies and charges outstanding.
The Company has complied with the requirement of the Regulation and LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF
CORPORATE GOVERNANANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019 in the following manner.
The total number of directors are seven (7) as per the following:
a)
Male: 4
b)
Female: 3
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The Composition of board is as follows:
Category

Names

Designation

Independent Directors

Ms. Shafqat Sultana
Ms. Charmaine Hidayatullah
Syed Shabahat Hussain
Mr. Ahmed Salman Munir

Chairperson
Director
Director
Director

Executive Director

Ms. Tara Uzra Dawood

Chief Executive Officer

Non - Executive Directors

Syed Farhan Abbas
Mr. Tahir Mehmood
Ms. Shafqat Sultana
Ms. Tara Uzra Dawood
Ms. Charmaine Hidayatullah

Director
Director
Chairperson
Chief Executive Officer
Director

Female Directors

Board of Directors Meetings
During the year, four meetings were held. The attendance of each Director is as follows:
Names
Ms. Shafqat Sultana
Ms. Tara Uzra Dawood
Ms. Charmaine Hidayatullah
Mr. Tahir Mehmood
Syed Farhan Abbas
Syed Shabahat Hussain
Ahmed Salman Munir

No of Meetings held
4
4
4
4
4
4
4

No of Meetings attended
4
4
2
4
4
4
4

Leave granted
2**
-

**Leave of absence was granted.
Audit Committee Meeting
During the year, Four Mettings were held. The attendance of each Member is as follows:
Names
Syed Shabahat Hussain
Mr. Tahir Mehmood
Syed Farhan Abbas

No of Meetings held
4
4
4

No of Meetings attended
4
4
4

Leave granted
-

**Leave of absence was granted.
Auditors
The present Auditors, Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman retire and being eligible, have offered themselves for reappointment. The Board Audit Committee have recommended their re-appointment as statutory auditors for the
year ending June 30, 2021 and the Board have endorsed the communication.
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Dividend
The Board of Directors has announced cash dividend to unit holders of PKR 8.2184 per unit for the year ended
June 30, 2020 which comes out to be 8.21% of the par value per unit of PKR 100.
Sales and Redemption Units
5,924,775 units worth PKR 501.91 million were issued in the current year (2019: 8,042,818 units worth PKR
665.39 million) and 3,731,328 units worth PKR 322.36 were redeemed in the current year (2019: 6,292,094 units
worth PKR 512.84 million). As of June 30, 2020, the total number of outstanding units was 7,734,563 valued as
PKR 626.50 million.
Acknowledgement
The Board of Directors of the Management Company is thankful to the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan and the management of the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited for their continued support and cooperation.
The Directors also appreciate the efforts put in by the employees of the Company for their commitment and
dedication and shareholders for their confidence in the Company.

__________________

_______________________

Director

Shafqat Sultana
Chairperson

September 28, 2020
Karachi.
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REPORT OF THE FUND MANAGER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020
Description of Collective Investment Scheme Category and Type:
Income Scheme/Open end
Fund Objective
To preserve the investor's capital while providing a return greater than that offered by other investments of similar
risk profile through investments in portfolio of money market instruments.
Explanation as to whether the Collective Investment Scheme Achieved Its Stated Objective
The Collective Investment Scheme achieved its stated objective.
Fund Performance
As of June 30, 2020, net assets were Rs. 626.50 million as compared to Rs. 445.69 million as of June 30, 2019.
The total operating income for the year was Rs. 62.97 million as compared to Rs. 62.02 million for the same
period last year. Total expenses during the year were Rs. 12.65 million as compared to Rs. 11.59 million last year.
The net profit for the financial year 2020 was Rs. 39.24 million, as compared to Rs. 38.90 million last year. The
Net Asset Value per unit was Rs. 81.00 as of June 30, 2020.
Fund Return
Fund Bench Mark Six Month average deposit rates of three (3) A-rated schedules Islamic banks or Islamic windows
of conventional banks as selected by MUFAP
YTD Return
11.12%
10.93%

FY 2019
FY 2020

YTD Bench Mark
10.05%
6.41%

Asset Allocation
13.24%
83.75%
3.01%

TFC / Sukuk
Bank Balances
Others
Asset Quality 2019
AA
AAA+
A1+

66.54%
0.17%
30.92%
2.37%

Changes in Total NAV And NAV Per Unit Since the Last Review Period
June 30, 2019
445,691,772

Net Assets Value
June 30, 2020
Change in %
626,503,738
40.57%

NAV per unit
June 30, 2019 June 30, 2020
80.43
81.00
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INVESTMENT STRATEGY
The Fund's priority is to keep healthy liquidity, making prudent decisions on residual debt, and making risk-averse
decisions on future investments. Fund management is actively pursuing the settlement of the residual debt while
ensuring the high unit holder protection. Ensuring steady profit while meeting any and all redemption need is the
Fund's prime priority.
DIVIDEND
The Board of Directors has announced a cash dividend to unitholders of Rs. 8.2184 per unit for the year ended
June 30, 2020, which comes out to be 8.21% of the par value per unit of Rs. 100.
PATTERN OF UNIT HOLDING
Details of Pattern of Holdings (Units)
786 Smart Fund
As at June 30, 2020
Number Of
Certificateholders
663
12
5
12
1
1
1

Certificate Holding
From
To
0.0001
10,000
50,000
100,000
5,000,00
10,000,000
15,000,000

-

9,999.9999
49,999.9999
99,999.9999
499,999.9999
999,999.9999
1,499,999,999
1,999,999,999

695

Number Of
Certificates
257,005.95
317,273.32
337,903.58
3,105,374.49
656,443.22
1,235,156.51
1,825,405.92
7,734,563.00

ECONOMIC REVIEW:
Pakistan's debt burden used to be already significant, and the post COVID-19 situation has made it nearly impossible
for it to service the massive debt comparable to a number of developing countries. So far, Pakistan has managed
to attain a loan worth USD1.4 bn under the Rapid Financing Instrument. Pakistan Institute of Development
Economics and the World Bank have estimated large increase in poverty rate. Pakistan's economy is predicted
to witness an adverse GDP growth of 0.4% in the current fiscal year as against positive 3.3% in FY19, particularly
due to the effect of COVID-19 currency devaluation and inflationary pressures were the primary reason for the
negative growth rate. Investment to GDP ratio was 15.4% for 9m20 vs 15.6% for the same period last year. National
Savings to GDP was 13.9% for 9m20 compared to 10.8% for the same period last year. The reduction in the
Saving-Investment Gap was possible due to reduction of trade deficit and increase in workers remittances.
The fine increase in agriculture recorded a strong growth of 2.7% which is considerably higher than the 0.6%
achieved in the past year The crop sector experienced a significant growth of 3.0% due to the increase in the
growth of major crops (wheat, rice, maize, sugarcane, cotton) by 2.9% Agricultural credit as at 9m20 was PKR912
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bn which is 13.3% higher than same period last year.
The industrial and services sectors has been estimated at -2.6% mainly due to a -8.8% and -7.8% plunge in the
mining & quarrying and large-scale manufacturing sectors respectively. The services sector was also significantly
impacted due to the lockdown situation in the country, especially the Wholesale & Retail Trade and Transport
Sectors, which declined by -3.4% and -7.1% respectively. To stimulate growth, the government has announced a
PKR1.2 tn fiscal stimulus package and a construction industry related package which includes tax exemptions,
an amnesty scheme and PKR30 bn subsidy.
E-Commerce in FY20 the government approved the first-ever E-Commerce (EC) policy framework. SBP states
that Pakistan can increase its GDP by USD36 bn and create 4mn jobs by 2025 via an increase in the use of digital
financial services alone. Privatization
During FY20, the government decided to privatize 33 state owned entities including six public sector enterprises.
During FY20, some CPEC projects achieved their commercial operation date. These include the Hubco & Engro
Coal Projects, as well as substantial portions of road projects namely the Peshawar- Karachi motorway & KKH
Phase-II road. Given the impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic, sustaining the focus and pace on CPEC, in its
present state, seems difficult.
Pakistan's current account deficit shrunk to USD3.3 bn in 10m20, as in contrast to USD11.5 bn in the identical
period last year, registering a decline of 71%. This contraction is attributable to a reduction in imports by means
of 17% and will increase in remittances by means of 5.6%. Over the last five years, remittances have grown by
way of a CAGR of approximately 7% providing robust support to current account balance in opposition to trade
deficit. During the period 10m20, remittances grew by means of 5.5% to USD19 bn in contrast to USD18 bn in
10m19. The average CPI for 11m20 was 10.9%, as in contrast to the average inflation of 6.7% at some point of
the identical period last year. IMF forecasts inflation to reduce to 9% in the following year. Pakistan's total revenue
registered a growth of 31% during 9m20, while expenditure increased by 16% resulting in decline in the fiscal
deficit from 5.1% in 9m19 to 4% in 9m20.
Money Market Review:
The average inflation rate in Pakistan stood at approx.11% for 11m20. The inflation peaked to 14.6% on January
20 which was a end result of energy tariff adjustments and the adoption of the market-based exchange rate. A
downward trend was determined in inflation after January, whereby, it reduced in size to 8.2% on May 20 registering
a drop of 6% in the closing 4 months due to declining oil prices and falling demand due to pandemic.
The rate of decline, however, decreased on May 20 in contrast to prior months as a end result of a spike in prices
of some essential food items offsetting the influence of reduced petroleum product prices. The declining inflation
rate has given room to SBP which has aggressively slashed the policy rate to 8%. The policy price was once kept
on the greater side at 13.25% from July 19 until March 20 to contain inflation.
The depreciation of PKR for the 11m20 towards USD was 3.2% as compared to 21.7% the identical period last
year. On April 20, PKR recorded its historic low of 167.9 towards USD exceptionally reflecting the ongoing
COVID-19 crisis and the reduction in the policy rate.
In secondary markets, T-bill 3 months, 6 months and 12 months yields were down in the range of 60bps to 89bps,
whereas a mixed trend was witnessed in PIB yields. PIB 3 years was down by 4 bps (7.53%), 5 years yield was
up by 20 bps to 8.11% and 10 years PIB yield was also increased by 18 bps to close at 8.69%. In the primary
market, two T-bill auctions and PIB oater auctions were conducted closing of the year 2020. In total Rs. 390 billion
were accepted against a target and maturity of Rs. 520 billion & Rs.485 billion respectively. A Fixed-rate PIB
auction was also conducted in which participation was witnessed at Rs. 177 billion against a target of Rs. 140
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billion; SBP accepted Rs. 112 billion across all tenors.
The country's total foreign exchange reserves fell 10% to USD16.9 bn on May 20 placing extra pressure on the
currency due to outflows. Post COVID-19 crisis, remittances being a fundamental support for the CAD of Pakistan
are predicted to decline due to the sluggish growth in advanced economies thereby having a negative have an
impact on PKR.
Future Outlook
The financial year 2021 is expected to continue to be underneath the shadow of the pandemic. The IMF has
anticipated a tremendous increase of 2% but this seems constructive at this stage. Inflation is expected to stay low
as given the suppressed demand and falling global commodity prices. SBP policy rate is predicted to be reduced
similarly given the decrease inflation blended with the need to jump-start the economy. PKR is expected to
depreciate in addition towards the USD. The extent of such depreciation relies upon mainly on debt restructuring
initiatives.
Remittances are expected to be lower due to the negative impact on the Pakistani employees in Middle Eastern
countries both due to the pandemic as well as declining oil prices. Exports are expected to be extensively impacted
in the coming fiscal 12 months on the grounds that Pakistan's main export destinations, China, UK, US, France,
Italy, Spain, and Germany, are among the countries most affected through the COVID-19 pandemic. Imports are
expected to remain suppressed due to decrease economic undertaking and decreased oil prices. Compliance with
FATF conditionalities continues to be a essential factor and whilst the government is confident, all efforts need
to be made to obtain most feasible compliance ahead of the evaluation in September 2020.
Other Disclosure Under NBFC Regulations 2008:
The Fund Manager hereby makes the following disclosures as required under NBFC Regulations 2008;
The Management Company or any of its delegates did not receive any soft commission (goods & services)
from any of its brokers/dealers by virtue of transactions conducted by the Fund.
There was no unit split undertaken during the year.
Investments are subject to market risk that may materially affect any interests of unit holders
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Details of Pattern of Holdings (Units)
As at June 30, 2020
S.
No.

Category

No of
Unit
Holders

Investment
Amount

% of
Total

1

Directors

2

53,173,553

8.49%

2

Associated Companies

9

264,902,476

42.28%

3

Individuals

654

233,983,218

37.35%

4

Insurance

3

4,124,437

0.66%

5

Others

27

70,320,054

11.22%

TOTAL

695

626,503,738

100.00%
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DETAILS OF PATTERN OF HOLDINGS (UNITS)
AS AT JUNE 30, 2020
S. No.
1

Category

No of Unit
Holders

Unit Held

Amount

1
1

656,443
16

53,172,229
1,323

8.49
0.00

1
1

1,825,406
396,776

147,858,793
32,139,018

23.60
5.13

1
3

480,710
428,963

38,937,756
34,746,251

6.22
5.55

1
1
1

58,278
28,687
109,708

4,720,537
2,323,666
8,886,417

0.75
0.37
1.42

2,888,664

233,983,218

37.35

4,124,437

0.66

Directors
Ms. Tara Uzra Dawood, CEO
Ms. Charmaine Hidayatullah

2

% of Total

Associated Companies
786 Investment Limited
BRR Guardian Modaraba
First Dawood Investment Bank Ltd and Others
Employees Contributory Provident Fund
Dawood Family Takaful Limited
Dawood Family Takaful Limited Employees Contributory Provident Fund
BRR Financial Services (Pvt.) Limited
Dawood International (Private) Limited

3

Individuals

654

4

Insurance Companies

3

50,919

5

Bank/DFIs

-

-

-

-

6

Modaraba / Mutual Funds

-

-

-

-

7

Others

27

809,992

65,610,093

10.47

TOTAL

695

7,734,562

626,503,738

100.00

10
18

19

20

21

22

23
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STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AS AT JUNE 30, 2020
2019

2020
Note

---------------Rupees---------------

Assets
Balances with Banks

7

548,128,655

331,391,795

Investments

8

86,625,682

116,722,434

Accrued Income/Profit

5,670,500

6,271,592

Security Deposits

9
10

6,150,000

100,000

Advance Income Tax

19

7,923,448

73,763

654,498,285

454,559,584

1,183,182

Total Assets
Liabilities
Payable to 786 Investments Limited - Management Company

11

2,308,585

Payable to MCB Financial Services Limited - Trustee

12

85,649

70,640

Payable to Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan

13

124,256

354,912

5,738,576

369,962

14

19,737,481

6,889,115

27,994,547

8,867,811

Net Assets

626,503,738

445,691,773

Unit Holders' Funds

626,503,738

445,691,773

Unclaimed Dividend
Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Contingencies and Commitments

15

(Number)
Number of Units in Issue

16

7,734,563

5,541,116

(Rupees)
Net Assets Value per Unit

81.00

The annexed notes from 1 to 26 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For 786 Investments Limited.
(Management Company)

Chief Finicial Officer

Chief Executive Officer

10
25

Director

80.43
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INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
Note

2020
2019
---------------Rupees---------------

Income
Net Realized Loss on Sale of Investments

-

Income From Investments and Balances With Banks
Reversal of Impairment on Investment at Fair Value
Through Other Comprehensive Income

(402,965)

17

54,571,445

45,612,417

8.1.1

8,377,578

16,755,156

21,818
62,970,841

58,165
62,022,773

Other Income
Expenses
Remuneration to the Management Company

11.1

7,847,917

7,098,308

Sindh Sales Tax on Remuneration to the Management Company

11.2

1,020,230

922,779

Accounting and Operational Charges

11.3

523,194

453,221

Remuneration to the Trustee

12.1

784,793

719,900

Sindh Sales Tax on Trustee Fee

12.2

102,023

93,590

Annual Fee to Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan

13

104,642

354,912

Auditor's Remuneration

18

452,487

455,965

Fees and Subscription

188,090

140,500

Securities Transactions Cost
Printing and Related Charges

182,695

68,761

Legal and Professional Charges
Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund

14.2

Withholding Taxes - Written Off

50,138

70,000

278,291
1,026,880

173,100
1,029,233

76,500

Charity Expense

-

2,714

Bank Charges
Net Income for the Year Before Taxation
Taxation

19

Net Income for the Year After Taxation

13,107

10,104

12,653,701

11,590,373

50,317,140

50,432,400

50,317,140

50,432,400

Allocation of Net Income for the Year
Net Income for the Period
Income Already Paid on Units Redeemed
Accounting Income Available for Distribution:
Relating to Capital Gain

50,317,140

50,432,400

(11,073,236)

(11,529,639)

39,243,904

38,902,761

-

Excluding Capital Gain

39,243,904
39,243,904

The annexed notes from 1 to 26 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For 786 Investments Limited.
(Management Company)

Chief Finicial Officer

Chief Executive Officer
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786 Smart Fund

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
Note
Net Income for the Year After Taxation

2020
2019
---------------Rupees--------------50,317,140

50,432,400

Items That Have Been Or May Be Re-Classified
Subsequently to the Income Statement

-

-

Unrealized Gain on Revaluation of Investments Classified As
Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income - Net

8.4

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year

278,050

54,250

278,050

54,250

50,595,190

50,486,650

The annexed notes from 1 to 26 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For 786 Investments Limited.
(Management Company)

Chief Finicial Officer

Chief Executive Officer
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STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT IN UNIT HOLDERS FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
2019
2020
---------------------------------------Rupees---------------------------------------------------------------------------Rupees-----------------------------------(Accumulated
Loss)/
Undistributed
Income

Capital
Value

Unrealized
(Loss)/Gains
on
Investment

-

476,550,954

642,284,559

-

-

-

25,363,347

23,110,503

-

-

23,110,503

501,914,300

665,395,062

-

-

665,395,062

-

(300,124,124)

(502,278,391)

-

(11,073,236)

476,550,954

-

25,363,347

-

501,914,300

-

-

Total Proceeds on Issuance of Units

722,434

668,184

Total

435,397,805

587,946,959

Issue of 5,924,775 Units
(2019: 8,042,818 Units)
- Capital Value (At Net Asset Value
per Unit at the Beginning of the Year)

(101,341,693)

Unrealized
Gains on
Investment

445,691,773

Net Assets at Beginning of the Year

- Element of Income

(142,977,620)

(Accumulated
Loss)/
Undistributed
Income

Capital
Value

Total

334,724,296

642,284,559

Redemption of 3,731,328 Units
(2019: 6,292,094 Units)
- Capital Value (At Net Asset Value
per Unit at the Beginning of the Year)

(300,124,124)

- Amount Paid out of Element of Income

-

(11,073,236)

-

(11,529,639)

-

(502,278,391)

-

(11,529,639)

- Refund/Adjustment on Units as
Element of Income
Total Payments on Redemption of Units
Net Income for the Year Before Taxation
Other Comprehensive Income

(11,162,525)
(311,286,648)

-

-

(11,073,236)

-

50,317,140

-

278,050

(11,162,525)

(10,567,517)

(322,359,884)

(512,845,908)

50,317,140
278,050

-

-

(11,529,639)
50,432,400

-

(10,567,517)

-

(524,375,547)

54,250

50,432,400
54,250

Distribution for the Year
@ 8.53 per Unit on July 4, 2018
Distribution for the Year

-

-

-

-

-

(32,321,811)

-

(32,321,811)

@ 8.22 per Unit on June 26, 2019
Distribution for the Year

-

-

-

-

-

(48,216,877)

-

(48,216,877)

@ 8.22 per Unit on June 26, 2020
Net Assets at End of the Year
Undistributed (Loss)/Income Brought Forward
- Realized Loss
- Unrealized Income

(12,539,623)

(36,798,019)

(12,539,623)

13,519,121

766,034,989

(140,531,735)

Undistributed Loss Carried Forward
Undistributed (Loss) Carried Forward
- Realized Loss
- Unrealized Income

(49,337,642)
1,257,548

1,000,484

626,503,738

587,946,959

-

54,250

(30,052,038)

(142,977,620)

722,434

445,691,773

(101,341,693)
(101,341,693)

39,243,904
39,243,904

38,902,761
38,902,761

(49,337,642)

(80,538,688)

(153,071,358)

(142,977,620)

(153,071,358)
(153,071,358)

(142,977,620)
(142,977,620)

Net Assets Value per Unit at Beginning of the Year

80.43

88.31

Net Assets Value per Unit at End of the Year

81.00

80.43

The annexed notes from 1 to 26 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For 786 Investments Limited.
(Management Company)

Chief Finicial Officer

Chief Executive Officer
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(30,106,288)

(142,977,620)
(142,977,620)

Accounting Income Available for Distribution
- Relating to Capital Gain
- Excluding Capital Gain
Distribution During the Year

278,050

Director

786 Smart Fund

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
2020
Note

2019

---------------Rupees---------------

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
50,317,140

Net Income for the Year Before Taxation

50,432,400

Adjustments For:
-

Net Realized Loss on Sale of Investments
Markup/Interest Income on Bank Balances and Investments
Reversal of Impairment on Investment At Fair Value Through Other
Comprehensive Income
Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund
Operating Loss Before Working Capital Changes

(402,965)

(54,571,445)

(45,612,417)

(8,377,578)

(16,755,156)

1,026,880

1,029,233

(61,922,143)

(61,741,305)

(Increase)/Decrease in Assets
Deposits and Prepayments

(6,050,000)

-

Advance Income Tax

(7,849,685)

(73,763)

(13,899,685)

(73,763)

1,125,403

439,147

15,009

14,625

(230,656)

111,825

Increase/(Decrease) in Liabilities
Payable to the Management Company
Payable to the Trustee
Annual Fee Payable to Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan
Dividend Payable
Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities
Proceeds From Investments - Net

5,368,614

-

11,821,486

344,534

18,099,856

910,131

38,752,380

61,832,221

55,172,537

40,939,664

86,520,085

92,299,348

Markup/Interest Income Received on Investments and
Balances With Banks
Net Cash Generated From Operating Activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Amounts Received Against Issue of Units

501,914,300

665,395,062

(322,359,884)

(524,375,547)

Dividend Paid

(49,337,642)

(80,538,688)

Net Cash Generated From Financing Activities

130,216,775

60,480,827

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents

216,736,860

152,780,175

Cash and Cash Equivalents At Beginning of the Year

331,391,795

178,611,620

548,128,655

331,391,795

Payment Made Against Redemption of Units

7

Cash and Cash Equivalents At End of the Year
The annexed notes from 1 to 26 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For 786 Investments Limited.
(Management Company)

Chief Finicial Officer

Chief Executive Officer
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
1

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

1.1 Dawood Income Fund (the Fund) was established under the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulations) Rules, 2003 (the NBFC
Rules). The Fund was constituted under a Trust Deed executed on April 08, 2003 between 786 Investments Limited as Management Company and Bank
AL-Habib Limited (BAHL) as Trustee. In June 2011, BAHL retired and MCB Financial Services Limited (MCBFSL) was appointed as the new trustee of
the Fund and the name of the Fund was also changed from "Dawood Money Market Fund" to "Dawood Income Fund". These changes, after necessary
regulatory approvals, were duly incorporated in the Trust Deed of the Fund by way of First Supplemental Trust Deed. On January 20, 2017, the Management
Company has changed its name to 786 Investments Limited after completing regulatory formalities. The registered office of the Management Company is
situated at G3, Ground floor, B.R.R Tower, Hassan Ali Street, I.I Chundrigar Road, Karachi, Pakistan.
During the year ended June 30, 2020, the name of Dawood Income Fund has been changed to 786 Smart Fund with the approval of SECP vide its letter
number SCD/AMCW/786RSF/147/2018, dated October 29, 2018, in compliance of regulation 44(6) of the Non Banking Finance Companies and Notified
Entities regulations 2008.
1.2 The Fund is an open end mutual Fund and is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange. Units are offered for public subscription on a continuous basis. The units
are transferable and can also be redeemed by surrendering them to the Fund.
1.3 The principal activity of the Fund is to make investment in spread transactions and debt based securities including government securities, commercial papers
and other money market instruments and placement of Funds.
1.4 Title to the assets of the Fund are held in the name of MCBFSL as the Trustee of the Fund (except for term finance certificate of New Allied industries
limited as mentioned in note 8.3.1 which is a non-performing term finance certificate hence being unable to be transferred until final settlement, which is
held in the name of BAHL being the previous Trustee of the Fund).
1.5 The Fund is categorized as "Shariah complaint islamic scheme" in accordance with circular no. 07 of 2009 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission
of Pakistan (SECP).
1.6 The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA) has assigned an asset manager rating of "AM3" to the Management Company as at December 27,
2019 and stability rating of "AA-(f)" to the Fund as at April 27, 2020.
1.7 During the Year, the SECP vide its letter reference No: SCD/AMCW/786IL/153/2019 dated December 02, 2019 granted approval under regulation 58(1)(m)
of Non -Banking finance companies and notified entities regulations, 2008 (NBFC Regulations, 2008) read with circular no: 20 of June 23, 2009 for the
merger of 786 Rising Star Fund (786RSF), First Dawood Mutual Fund (FDMF) with and into 786 Smart Fund (786SF) surviving scheme in terms of scheme
of merger as approved by the board of directors of 786 investments limited and the unit holders of the respective scheme of merger in their general meeting
held on September 23, 2019 and October 16, 2019 respectively. The merger, as per the above referred "scheme", is effective as of December 20, 2019.
2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS AND EVENTS
Merger of the 2 Funds, Rising Star Fund and First Dawood Mutual Fund took place during the year, the details of which are disclosed in the note 2.1 of the
financial statements.

2.1 MERGER
The merging schemes stood merged with and into the surviving scheme on the basis of swap ratio calculated on the basis of net asset values (NAV) of the
merging and the surviving schemes at the close of the business day on December 19, 2019 (the day immediately preceding the effective date of merger).
For one unit of 786 Rising Star Fund (786RSF) 1.256 units of 786 Smart Fund (786SF) were issued and for one unit of First Dawood Mutual Fund (FDMF)
0.2044 units of 786 Smart Fund (786SF) were issued. Assets and liabilities of 786 Rising Star Fund (RSF) and First Dawood Mutual Fund (FDMF) have
been recorded/merged at the fair value as of the merging date.
The swap ratios for the merging Funds based on the net assets as of December 19, 2019 for every unit is as follow:

Fund Name
786 Rising Star Fund
First Dawood Mutual Fund

Previous Units
974,266
6,160,807

Swap ratio
1.2566
0.2044

Units alloted
1,224,246
1,259,050

None of the operations, resulting from the business combination are being disposed off. The whole of the undertaking 786 Rising Star Fund (786RSF) and
First Dawood Mutual Funds (FDMF) which includes all assets, rights, liabilities, bank balances, obligations, mandates, undertaking, securities, contracts
documents, record etc. were transferred to and vested in 786 Smart Fund (786SF) from December 20, 2019 (Effective Date of Merger). Accordingly, the
balances as of December 19, 2019 for 786 Rising Star Fund (786RSF), First Dawood Mutual Fund (FDMF) are as follows:
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Description
Assets
Less: Liabilities
Net Assets

786 Rising Star Fund
107,015,830
(2,042,844)
104,972,986

First Dawood Mutual Fund
116,526,613
(8,569,389)
107,957,224

The summarised results of the merging Funds before amalgamation for the period from June 30, 2019 to December 19, 2019 included in these condensed
interim financial statements as follows:

Fund Name

786 Rising Star Fund

Realised Income
Unrealised loss on investment - net
Total income
Total expenditure
Net Income

First Dawood Mutual Fund

4,973,231
(1,646)
4,971,585
(1,526,379)
3,445,206

2,978,495
2,978,495
(1,861,758)
1,116,736

As a result of merger, an appropriate number of units of 786 smart fund (786SF) (based on swap ratio) were issued to those eligible persons whose names
appeared in the register of unit holders of 786 Rising Star Fund (786RSF) and First Dawood Mutual Fund (FDMF) as at the close of business day on December
19, 2019 (the day immediately preceding the effective date of merger) without charge of any load by the management. Upon the allotment of units of 786
Smart Fund (786SF) to the eligible persons, all units representing their holding in 786 Rising Star Fund (786RSF) and First Dawood Mutual Fund (FDMF)
stood cancelled.
3

BASIS OF PREPARATION

3.1 Statement of Compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting
and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprises:
-

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies
Act, 2017,

-

Provision of the directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 along with part VIIIA of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984; and

-

Non Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules 2003 (the NBFC Rules), Non Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities
Regulations, 2008 (the NBFC Regulations) and the requirements of Trust Deed.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules and
the NBFC Regulations and the requirement of the Trust Deed differ from the IFRS, the provision of and the directives issued under the Companies Act,
2017, part VIIIA of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations and the requirement of the Trust Deed have been
followed.
3.2 Basis of Measurement
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for investments which are valued at fair value as stated in notes
6.1, 6.2 and 6.3 below.
3.3 Functional and Presentation Currency
These financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees which is the Fund's functional and presentation currency. All amount have been rounded off
to the nearest rupees unless otherwise indicated.
4

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which form the basis of making judgements about carrying values of assets and
liabilities. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
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The estimates and judgements that have a significant effect on the financial statements are in respect of the following:

Notes
Investments (Financial assets)

6.1

Provisions

6.5

Element of income/loss and capital gains/losses in prices of units issued less

5

those in units redeemed - net

6.9

Contingencies and commitments

15

STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS TO APPROVED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

5.1 Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that may be relevant to the fund and adopted in the current year
The Fund has adopted the following new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations of IFRSs which became effective during the
current year.

Effective Date

Standard or Interpretation

(Annual periods beginning
on or after)

IFRS 14 'Regulatory Deferral accounts'

July 1, 2019

IFRS 16 'Leases'

January 1, 2019

IAS 12 'Income tax consequences of payments on financial instruments classified as equity'

January 1, 2019

IAS 23 Borrowing costs eligible for capitalization

January 1, 2019

IFRS 3 Previously held interest in a joint operation

January 1, 2019

IFRS 9 Prepayment features with negative compensation

January 1, 2019

IFRS 11 Previously held interest in a joint operation

January 1, 2019

IFRIC 23 'Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments'

January 1, 2019

IAS 28 'Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures' (Amendments to IAS 28)

January 1, 2019

IAS 19 'Plan Amendment, Curtail or Settlement' (Amendments to IAS 19)

January 1, 2019

Annual improvements to IFRSs 2015 - 2017 Cycle

January 1, 2019

The Fund is in the process of assessing the impact of these Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards on the financial statements
of the Fund.
5.2 Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that may be relevant but not yet effective and not early adopted by the fund
The following new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective
standard or interpretation.

Effective date
(Annual periods beginning
on or after)

Standard or Interpretation
IFRS 3 'Definition of a business' Amendment to IFRS 3

January 1, 2020

IAS 1/IAS 8 'Definition of Material' (Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8)

January 1, 2020

IFRS 7, IFRS 9, and IAS 39 - Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

January 1, 2020

Various Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards

January 1, 2020

32

786 Smart Fund

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
The fund is in the process of assessing the impact of these Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards on the financial statements
of the fund.
5.3 Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are not yet notified by the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan (SECP)
Following new standards have been issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) which are yet to be notified by the SECP for the purpose
of applicability in Pakistan.

Standard or Interpretation

IASB effective date
(Annual periods beginning
on or after)

IFRS 17 'Insurance Contracts'

January 1, 2022

IFRS 1 'First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards'
6

July 1, 2009

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied
unless otherwise stated.

6.1 Financial Assets
6.1.1Classification and Measurement
The fund classifies its financial assets in the following categories: financial assets at amortized cost, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL) and financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). The classification depends on the business model in which the
financial asset is managed and its contractual cash flows. The management determines the appropriate classification of its financial assets at initial recognition
and it evaluates this classification on a regular basis.
The assessments have been made on the basis of the facts and circumstances that existed at the date of initial application about the determination of business
model within which a financial asset is held and the designation and revocation of previous designation of certain financial assets as measured at FVTPL.
The financial assets are categorized as follows:
Financial asset at amortized cost
Financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and the contractual terms give rise to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) are classified as financial asset at amortized cost.
Financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income
Debt investment
Debt investment where the contractual cash flows are SPPI and the objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets are classified as financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Equity investment
Equity investment which are not held for trading, and which has irrevocably elected at initial recognition to recognize as fair value through other comprehensive
income (generally strategic investment) are classified as financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss
Debt investment
Debt investments that do not qualify for measurement at either amortized cost or FVOCI are classified as financial asset at fair value through profit or loss.
Equity investment
Equity investments that are held for trading, and equity investments for which the entity has not elected to recognize fair value gains and losses through
OCI are classified as financial asset at fair value through profit or loss.
6.1.2 Regular Way Contracts
Regular purchases and sale of financial assets are recognized on the trade dates that reflects the date on which the Fund commits to purchase or sell the asset.
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6.1.3Initial Recognition and Measurement
Financial assets are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs except for financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value while the related transaction cost are expensed out in income statement.
6.1.4Subsequent Measurement
Financial asset at amortized cost
Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets classified as amortized cost are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
Gains or losses are also recognized in the income statement when financial assets carried at amortized cost are derecognized or impaired.
Financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income
Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets classified as fair value through other comprehensive income are carried at fair value using valuation
methodology (note 6.1.5).
Net gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value and on sale of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are taken to the
statement of other comprehensive income.
Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss
Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets classified as fair value through profit or loss are carried at fair value using valuation methodology (note
6.1.5).
Net gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value and on sale of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are taken to the income statement.
6.1.5 Basis of Valuation of Debt Investments
The investment of the Fund in the debt instruments (comprising any securities issued by the government, a company or a body corporate for the purpose of
raising funds in the form of market treasury bill, redeemable capital and includes term finance certificates, bonds, debentures, sukuks and commercial papers
etc.) is valued on the basis of rates determined and published by the Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan (MUFAP) in accordance with the methodology
prescribed by the SECP for valuation of debt securities. In determination of the rates the MUFAP takes in account the holding pattern of these securities
and categorized them as traded, thinly traded and non-traded securities. The circular also specifies the valuation process to be followed for each category as
well as the criteria for the provisioning of non-performing debt securities.
6.1.6 Impairment
The carrying value of the Fund's assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount of such asset is estimated. An impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount.
Impairment loss in respect of investment classified as FVTOCI (other than debt securities) is recognized based on management's assessment of objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that may have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the investments. A significant or
prolonged decline in fair value of an equity investment below its cost is also considered an objective evidence of impairment. The determination of what is
significant or prolonged requires judgment.
Provision for diminution in the value of debt securities is made as per the requirements of Circular No. 33 of 2012 dated October 24, 2012 (which is essentially
the same as contained in Circular No. 1 of 2009 previously issued by the SECP) and based on management's assessment made in line with its provisioning
policy approved by the Board of Directors of the Management Company pursuant to the requirements of the SECP's above referred circular.
In case of impairment of financial assets at FVOCI, the cumulative loss that has been recognized directly in statement of comprehensive income is taken to
the income statement.
Other individually significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The remaining financial assets are assessed collectively in
groups that share similar credit risk characteristics. All impairment losses are recognized in the income statement.
In relation to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an incurred credit loss model under IAS 39.
The expected credit loss model requires an entity to account for expected credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognized. However, SECP through its SCD/AMCW/RS/MUFAP/2017-148 dated November 21, 2017 have deferred the applicability of above impairment
requirements in relation to debt securities for mutual funds.
6.1.7 Derecognition
Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual right to future cash flows from the asset expires or is transferred along with the risk and reward of
ownership of the asset. Any gain or loss on derecognition of the financial assets is taken to income currently.

34

786 Smart Fund

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
6.2 Financial Liability
6.2.1 Classification and Measurement
Financial liability at amortized cost
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost, except for those measured at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial liability at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or loss requires that the amount of change in the fair value of a financial liability that is attributable
to changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of such changes in other comprehensive
income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.
6.2.2 Initial Recognition and Measurement
Financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value less transaction cost except for financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value while the related transaction cost are expensed out in income statement.
Financial liabilities are not recognized unless one of the parties has performed it part of the contract or the contract is a derivative product.
6.2.3 Subsequent Measurement
Financial liability at amortized cost
Financial liabilities, other than fair value through profit or loss are measured at amortized cost using the effective yield method.
Gains or losses are also recognized in the income statement when financial liabilities carried at amortized cost are derecognized.
Financial liability at fair value through profit or loss
Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities classified as fair value through profit or loss are carried at fair value using market rate of interest.
Net gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value due to change in credit risk are taken in to other comprehensive income and other change in fair
value and on sale of financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are taken to the income statement.
6.2.4 Derecognition
Financial liabilities are derecognised when they are extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled, or expires.
Any gain or loss on derecognition of the financial liabilities is taken to income currently.
6.3 Derivatives
These are initially recognized at cost and are subsequently remeasured at their fair value. Derivatives with positive fair values (unrealized gains) are included
in other assets and derivatives with negative fair values (unrealized losses) are included in other liabilities in the statement of assets and liabilities. The
resultant gain and loss is included in the income currently.
6.4 Offsetting of Financial Assets and Liabilities
Financial assets and financial liabilities are only offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of assets and liabilities when there is a legally enforceable
right to set off the recognized amount and the Fund intends to either settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
6.5 Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Fund has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each statement of assets and liabilities date
and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.
6.6 Issue and Redemption of Units
Units are allocated at the offer price prevalent on the day of realization of cheques. The offer price represents the net assets value at the end of the day plus
allowable sales load (if any).
Units are redeemed at offer price prevalent on the date on which application for redemption is received. The redemption price represents the net assets value
at the end of the day.
6.7 Revenue Recognition
Dividend income is recognized when right to receive dividend is established.
Gain or loss on sale of securities and settlement of derivatives is accounted for in the period in which the sales/settlement occur.
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Interest on debt and government securities is recognized at the rate of return implicit in the instrument on a time proportionate basis.
Profit on bank balances and term deposits is recognized on accrual basis in accordance with the contractual terms.
6.8 Taxation
The Fund is exempt from taxation under clause 99 of the Part I of the 2nd Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, subject to the condition that not
less than 90% of its accounting income as reduced by the realized and unrealized capital gain for the year is distributed amongst the Fund's unit holders.
Since the management has distributed the income earned by the Fund during the year to the unit holders in the manner as explained above, no provision for
taxation has been made in these financial statements.
The Fund is exempt from provisions of section 113 (Minimum Tax) under the clauses IIA of Part IV of the second schedule of the Income Tax Ordinance,
2001.
6.9 Element of income/loss and capital gains/losses in prices of units sold less those in units redeemed - net
Element of income has been determined as the difference between net assets value on the issuance and redemption date, as the case may be, of units and
the net assets value at the beginning of the accounting period.
Income paid on redemption of units (element of income) made during the year shall be on gross basis and calculated on First In First Out (FIFO) basis.
Element of income shall be disclosed in the statement of movement in unitholder's fund as distributable income and allocation of net income available for
distribution relating to capital gain excluding capital gains.
6.10 Distribution to Unit Holders
Distribution to unit holders is recognized upon declaration and approval by the board of directors of the Management Company.
6.11 Net Asset Value per Unit
The net asset value per unit disclosed in the statement of assets and liabilities is calculated by dividing the net assets of the Fund by the number of units in
issue at the year end.
6.12 Collaterals
Cash collaterals provided by the Fund are identified in the statement of assets and liabilities as margin and are not included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents. For collaterals other than cash, if the party to whom the collaterals are provided has a right by contract or custom to sell or re-pledge the collaterals,
the Fund classifies those collaterals in the statement of assets and liabilities separately from other assets and identifies the assets as pledged collaterals. Where
the party to whom the collaterals are provided does not have the right to sell or re-pledge, a disclosure of the collaterals provided is made in the notes to the
financial statements.
6.13 Earnings Per Unit
Earnings per unit has not been disclosed as in the opinion of the Management Company, the determination of the cumulative weighted average number of
outstanding units is not practicable.
6.14 Cash and Cash Equivalent
Cash and cash equivalent comprise of balances with banks and term deposits receipts having maturity up to 3 months or less.

2020
7

BALANCES WITH BANKS

Note

-Saving Accounts

7.1

2019

---------------Rupees--------------548,128,655

331,391,795

7.1 Profit rates on PLS saving accounts ranges from 4.5% to 11% as at June 30, 2020 (June 30, 2019: 3% to 11%) per annum.

8

INVESTMENTS

Note

2020
2019
---------------Rupees---------------

At Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income
Listed - Term finance certificates
Unlisted - Sukuk certificates

8.1
8.2
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8.1 At Fair Value through Other
Comprehensive Income

Note

Matured/
Disposed
During the
Year

Acquired as
a Result of
Merger

As at July
01, 2019

As at June 30,
Cost/
2020
Carrying Value

---------------------Number of certificates---------------------

Market
Value

% of Total
Investment

-----------------Rupees-----------------

Listed - Term Finance Certificates
Face Value of Rs. 5,000/- Each
Construction and Material
Dewan Cement Company Limited
Provision Held

8.1.1
8.3

15,917

-

1,675

14,242

71,209,413
(71,209,413)
-

-

-

-

8.1.1 Dewan cement limited (DCL) is classified as non-performing by MUFAP. Accordingly, the security has been fully provided in accordance with the requirements
of SECP's circular No. 1 of 2009 and the board's approved provisioning policy. The Fund has entered into a compromise agreement with DCL on May, 09
2016 whereby the remaining debt will be paid in thirty one equal quarterly installments in arrears. The Fund has recognized reversal of impairment amounting
to Rs. 8.38 millions on receipt basis in current period. The Fund has suspended mark-up there against.

8.2 At Fair Value through Other
Comprehensive Income

As at July
01, 2019
Unlisted - Term Finance Certificates
Face Value of Rs. 2,207/-each
Cable and electric goods
New Allied Industries Limited
Provision held
New Allied Industries Limited
Provision held

Acquired as
a Result of
Merger

Matured/
Disposed
During the
Year

As at June 30,
Cost/
2020
Carrying Value

---------------------Number of Certificates--------------------8.3.1
8.3

11,523

8.3.2
8.3

-

-

% of Total
Investment

-----------------Rupees-----------------

11,523

25,433,190

-

-

7,222,749

-

-

(7,222,749)
-

-

(25,433,190)
3,417

As at July
01, 2019

At Fair Value through Other Comprehensive
Income

-

Market
Value

Note

-

Acquired as
a result of

3,417

Matured/
Disposed

As at June 30,

Cost/

Market

% of Total

During the

2020

Carrying Value

Value

Investment

merger
Period
---------------------Number of certificates--------------------- ---------------Rupees--------------

Unlisted - Sukuk Certificates
Face Value of Rs. 1,000,000/-each
Cable and Electric Goods
TPL Corporation Limited

8.3.3

5

10
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11,836,906

11,250,000
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As at July
01, 2019
Note

Acquired as
a result of
merger

Matured/
Disposed

As at June 30,

Cost/

Market

% of Total

During the

2020

Carrying Value

Value

Investment

year

---------------------Number of certificates--------------------- ---------------Rupees--------------

Commercial Bank
Dubai Islamic Bank Limited

8.3.4

26

Engineering
Agha Steel Industries Limited

8.3.5

15

8.3.6
8.3.7

300
736

8.3.8

8,000

-

8,000

-

Eden Housing Limited

8.3.9

2,933

-

-

2,933

Provision held

8.3

-

26

26,486,304

26,682,088

31%

-

-

15

15,000,000

15,000,000

17%

100
-

-

400
736

31,908,500
1,115,922

32,583,158
1,110,436

38%
1%

Face value of Rs. 100,000/-each
Fertilizers
Dawood Hercules Corporation Limited
Fatima Fertilizer Company Limited
Face value of Rs. 5,000/-each
Power Generation & Distribution
Hub Power Company Limited

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Face value of Rs. 2,933/-each

Face value of Rs. 5,000/-each
Amtex limited
Provision held

8.3.10

2,887,171
(2,887,171)

-

6,000

-

6,000

8.3

22,500,000
(22,500,000)
-

-

balance carried forward

86,347,632

86,625,682

balance brought forward

86,347,632

86,625,682

Face value of Rs. 5,000/-each
New Allied Electronics Industries (Private) Limited 8.3.11
Provision held

-

1,000

8.3

-

1,000

5,027,500

-

-

(5,027,500)
86,347,632

86,625,682

8.3 Details of Non-Compliant Investments
The Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP), vide its circular No. 16 dated July 07, 2010, has prescribed certain disclosures for noncompliances, either with the minimum investment criteria specified for the category assigned to the Collective Investment Schemes or with the investment
requirements of their constitutive documents.
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Value of
Name of Non Compliant Investment

Note

Type of Investment

Investment

Provision held

before

if any

Value of
Investment

after provision
provision
-------------Rupees------------Dewan Cement Limited - Restructured

8.1.1

Pre-IPO Investment

71,209,413

(71,209,413)

-

% of net

% of Gross

assets

Assets

-

-

New Allied Industries Limited

8.3.1

Term Finance Certificates

25,433,190

(25,433,190)

-

-

-

New Allied Industries Limited

8.3.2

Term Finance Certificates

7,222,749

(7,222,749)

-

-

-

New Allied Industries Limited

8.3.11

Sukuk Certificates

5,027,500

(5,027,500)

-

Eden Housing Limited
Amtex Limited

8.3.9

Sukuk Certificates

2,887,171

(2,887,171)

-

-

-

8.3.10

Sukuk Certificates

22,500,000

(22,500,000)

-

8.3.1 New Allied Electronics Industries Limited defaulted on its payment of principal and mark-up due on December 25, 2008. Consequently, the security was
classified as non-performing by MUFAP on January 09, 2009 and accrual on the same was suspended. This security has been fully provided in accordance
with the provisioning circulars of SECP and the Board's approved provisioning policy. These TFCs are held in CDC investor account of the previous trustee
and will only be transferred upon final settlement.
8.3.2 New Allied Electronics Industries (Private) Limited defaulted on its payment of principal and mark-up due on 25 December 2008. Consequently, the security
was classified as non-performing by MUFAP on 9 January 2009 and accrual of income on the same was suspended. This security has been fully provided
in accordance with the provisioning circulars issued by the SECP and the Board's approved provisioning policy.
8.3.3 These sukuk certificates carry profit equal to 1 year KIBOR plus 3% receivable quarterly in arrears and will mature in April 2021. The principal amount is
redeemable in four six monthly installments of Rs. 0.25 million per certificate Each commencing from October 2019. These sukuk certificates are secured
by hypothecation charge over the hypothecated assets of Rs. 625 million and pledge of shares of TPL Properties Limited in favour of the Trustee of the issuer
for the benefit of the certificate holders.
8.3.4 These sukuk certificates are unsercured and carry profit equal to 6 month KIBOR plus 0.50% receivable half-yearly in arrears and will mature in July 2027.
8.3.5 This is the Pakistan's 1st over the counter listed sukuk issue, priced through competitive bidding process by Agha Steel Industries Limited backed by
diminishing musharaka and carry profit equal to 3 month KIBOR plus 0.8% and will completely mature in October 2024. Pak Brunei Limited is appointed
as trustee and the issue agent of the sukuk. These sukuk certificates are secured by hypothecation charge over the present and future fixed assets of the issuer
in favour of the Trustee of the issuer for the benefit of the certificate holders.
8.3.6 These sukuk certificates carry profit equal to 3 month KIBOR plus 1% receivable quarterly in arrears and will mature in February 2023. The instrument is
structured to redeem 60% of the issue amount during the first 4 years and remaining 40% in last two equal semi-annual installments of 20% Each. The
instrument is secured against pledge of shares of Engro Corporation Limited, inclusive of 50% margin, in a designated CDC account. In the event of any
sale and repurchase of security, the trustee will have a lien over subsequent cash, which is to be deposited in a specified bank account and further, floating
or hypothecation charge on all present and future assets of the Company inclusive of 25% margin security.
8.3.7 These sukuk certificates carry profit equal to 6 month KIBOR plus 1.1% receivable semi-annually in arrears and will mature in 5 years from 28 November
2016. The principal amount is redeemable in ten equal semi-annual instalments from the Ijarah commencement date. These certificates are secured by 1st
ranking hypothecation charge of all present and future fixed assets excluding land and building of the issuer with a minimum 25% margin, 1st ranking
mortgage over land and building of the issuer with a minimum 25% margin, establishment of and assignment of a Debt Payment Account, assignment over
all rights and benefits of the issuer under any and all project insurances and cut-through agreements for reinsurance.
8.3.8 These sukuk certificates are unsecured and carry profit equal to 3 month KIBOR plus 1% receivable quarterly in arrears and will mature in November 2019.
8.3.9 Eden Housing Limited defaulted on its payment of principal and mark-up due on April 21, 2011. Consequently, the security was classified as non- performing
by MUFAP on May 06, 2011 and accrual on the same was suspended. This security has been fully provided in accordance with the provisioning circulars
of SECP and the Board's approved provisioning policy. These sukuks are held in CDC investor account of the Fund.
8.3.10 Amtex Limited (Sukuk) defaulted on its payment of principal and mark-up due on December 22, 2010. Consequently, the security was classified as nonperforming by MUFAP non January 6, 2011 and accrual of income on the same was suspended. Accordingly, the security has been fully provided in accordance
with the provisioning circulars issued by SECP and the board's approved provisioning policy.
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8.3.11 New Allied Electronics Industries (Private) Limited defaulted on its payment of principal and mark-up due on 27 October 2008. Consequently, the security
was classified as non-performing by MUFAP on 9 January 2009 and accrual on the same was suspended. Management has recognised full provision there
against and the accrual of income has been suspended in line with provisioning policy of the Fund duly approved by the Board as per applicable SECP
provisioning circulars.

8.4 Unrealized Gain on Revaluation of Investments Classified
as Fair Value through Other
Comprehensive Income - Net

2020
Note

Fair Value of Investments

8.2

Less: Cost/Carrying Value of Investment

2019

---------------Rupees--------------86,625,682

116,722,434

(86,401,882)

(116,257,250)

223,800
Less: Net Unrealized Gain in Fair Value of Investments - Opening
9

ACCRUED INCOME/PROFIT
Income form:
- Profit and Loss Sharing (PLS) Accounts
- Sukuk Certificates

54,250

465,184
(410,934)

278,050

54,250

2,936,634

3,577,346

2,733,866

2,694,246

5,670,500

6,271,592

100,000
50,000
150,000

100,000
100,000

10 SECURITY DEPOSITS
Deposits - Central Depository Company
- Deposits - Central Depository Company 786SF
- Deposits - Central Depository Company FDMF
Deposits - National Clearing Company of Pakistan
- Deposits - National Clearing Company 786RSF

2,500,000

-

- Deposits - National Clearing Company FDMF

3,500,000

-

6,000,000
11 PAYABLE TO 786 INVESTMENTS LIMITED
- MANAGEMENT COMPANY
Management Remuneration

11.1

Sindh Sales Tax Payable

11.2

-

6,150,000

100,000

757,933

627,856

119,016

102,105
453,221

Accounting and Operational Charges
-786 Smart Fund

11.3

523,195

-First Dawood Mutual Fund

11.3

731,382

-786 Rising Star Fund

11.3

177,059

-

1,431,636

453,221

2,308,585

1,183,182

11.1 According to the provisions of the Trust Deed of the Fund, the Management Company has charged its remuneration at the rate of 1.5% (June 2019: 1.5%)
per annum on the average annual net assets of the Fund calculated on a daily basis.
11.2 The Sindh Provincial Government has levied Sindh Sales tax at the rate of 13% (June 2019: 13%) on Management Company's remuneration.
11.3 In accordance with the provisions of the NBFC Regulations amended vide S.R.O 1160(I)/2015 dated November 25, 2015, the Management Company of
the Fund is entitled for reimbursement of fee and expenses incurred by the Management Company in relation to registrar service, accounting, operation and
valuation services related to the Fund maximum up to 0.1% of average annual net assets of the scheme or actual which ever is less. Accordingly, the
Management Company has charged accounting and operating expenses to the Fund at a rate of 0.1% per annum of the average annual net assets of the Fund
for the year ended June 30, 2020.
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2020
Note

12 PAYABLE TO MCB FINANCIAL SERVICES

2019

---------------Rupees---------------

LIMITED- TRUSTEE
Trustee Remuneration

12.1

75,795

62,511

Sindh Sales Tax Payable on Trustee Remuneration

12.2

9,854

8,129

85,649

70,640

12.1 According to the provisions of the Trust Deed of the 786 Smart Fund, the Trustee is entitled to monthly remuneration for services rendered to the Fund as
follows:

On net assets:
-Up to Rs.1 billion

Rs.0.6 million or 0.15% per annum of the net assets of the Fund computed on a daily
basis whichever is higher.

-Exceeding Rs.1 Billion

Rs.0.6 million plus 0.09% per annum of the net assets of the Fund computed on a daily
basis exceeding Rs.1 billion.

12.2 The Sindh Provincial Government has levied sindh sales tax at the rate of 13% (June 2019: 13%) on trustee's remuneration.
13

ANNUAL FEE TO SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN
This represents annual fee payable to SECP in accordance with SRO 714(I)/2019 dated July 1, 2019 as amended in clause "c" of Schedule II of NBFC
Regulation 2008, read with regulation 62 of NBFC Regulation 2008, applicable from July 1, 2019 whereby the Fund is required to pay SECP an amount
equal to 0.02% of the average daily net assets. Earlier this fee was 0.085% of the average daily net assets.

2020
14 ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES

Note

2019

---------------Rupees---------------

Federal Excise Duty on Remuneration

14.1

6,513,679

1,797,106

Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund

14.2

7,458,609

3,267,015

Accrued Expenses

14.3

561,380

657,443

Other Liabilities

557,809

Capital Gain Tax Payable

261,552

Zakat Payable and Withholding Tax

1,155,931

4,384,452

11,620

19,737,481

6,889,115

14.1 The Finance Act, 2013 enlarged the scope of Federal Excise Duty (FED) on financial services to include Asset Management Companies (AMCs) with effect
from June 13, 2013. As the asset management services rendered by the Management Company of the Fund were already subject to provincial sales tax levied
by Sindh Revenue Board, which is being charged to the Fund, the Management Company was of the view that further levy of FED was not justified. On
September 04, 2013, a Constitutional Petition was filed in the Honorable Sindh High Court (SHC) jointly by various asset management companies, together
with their representative collective investment schemes.
The SHC while disposing the Constitutional Petition relating to levy of FED on mutual funds has declared the said provisions to be ultra vires and as a result
no FED is payable with effect from July 01, 2011 ( i.e. the date on which Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011 came into force). In response to this, the
Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue has filed a Civil Petition for leave to appeal in the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP). Thereafter, during
the pendency of the present civil petition, SCP has suspended the operation of the impugned judgement of the SHC. The matter is still pending adjudication.
With effect from July 01 2016, FED on services provided or rendered on non-banking financial institutions dealing in services which are subject to provincial
sales tax has been withdrawn by the Finance Act, 2016.
In view of the above, the Fund has discontinued making further provision in respect of FED on remuneration of Management Company with effect from
July 01, 2016. However, as a matter of abundant caution the provision made for FED for the period from June 13, 2013 till June 30, 2016 aggregating to
Rupees.1.797 million (June 30, 2019: Rupees. 1.797 million) is being retained in the financial statements of the Fund as the matter is pending before the
SCP. Had the said provision of FED not been recorded in the financial statements of the Fund, the net asset value per unit of the Fund as at June 30, 2020
would have been higher by Rs. 0.91 (June 30, 2019: Rs. 0.32) per unit.
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14.2 Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund (SWWF) is being made on a daily basis going forward pursuant to MUFAP's recommendation to all its members
on January 12, 2017 against the backdrop of the Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) letter to mutual funds in January 2016 whereby SRB directed the mutual funds
to register and pay SWWF for the accounting year closing on or after December 13, 2013. This is on the premise that mutual funds are included in definition
of financial institutions in the Financial Institutions (Recovery of Finance) Ordinance, 2001 hence WWF is payable by them. Though MUFAP has taken up
the matter with the Sindh Finance Ministry to have mutual funds excluded from the applicability of SWWF but as a matter of abundant caution the Management
has recorded SWWF with effect from the date of enactment of the SWWF Act, 2014 (i.e. starting from May 21, 2015).
Furthermore, on November 10, 2016, SCP passed a judgment declaring the amendments made in the Finance Acts 2006 and 2008 pertaining to WWF as
illegal citing that WWF was not in the nature of tax and could, therefore, not have been introduced through money bills. Accordingly, the aforesaid amendments
have been struck down by the SCP. The Federal Board of Revenue has filed a petition with the SCoP against the said judgment, which is pending. While
the petitions filed by the Collective Investment Schemes (CISs) on the matter are still pending before the SHC, the Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan
(MUFAP) (collectively on behalf of the asset management companies and their CISs) have taken legal and tax opinions on the impact of the SCP's judgement
on the CISs petition before the SHC. Both the legal and tax advisors consulted were of the view that the SCP's judgment has removed the very basis on which
the demands were raised against the CISs. Therefore, there was no longer any liability against the funds under the WWF Ordinance and that all cases pending
in the SHC or lower appellate forums will now be disposed of in light of the earlier judgement of the SCP.
Above decision was communicated to the SECP and the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited on January 12, 2017 and the SECP vide its letter dated February
1, 2017 has advised MUFAP that the adjustments relating to the above should be prospective. Accordingly, the Fund has recorded the adjustment in its books
on January 12, 2017.
As the matter of applicability of SWWF on mutual funds is pending before Sindh Finance Ministry, however; as a matter of prudence Management Company
has recognized SWWF charge for the period from May 21, 2015 to June 30, 2019. Had the SWWF not been provided, the net asset value of the Fund as at
June 30, 2020 would have been higher by Rs 1.04 per unit (June 30, 2019: Rs 0.59 per unit).

2020
2019
---------------Rupees---------------

14.3 Accrued Expenses

317,888
32,140
211,352
561,380

Auditors' Remuneration Payable
Rating Fee Payable - PACRA
Printing and Related Expenditure Payable
Shariah and Tax Advisors Fee Payable
Other Payable

340,601
226,000
40,000
49,172
1,670
657,443

15 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
There were no contingencies and commitments as at June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019.
2020
16 NUMBER OF UNITS IN ISSUE

2019

------------Number of Units-----------

Total Outstanding as of July 01

5,541,116

Issued During the Period

5,924,775

8,042,818

(3,731,328)

(6,292,094)

7,734,563

5,541,116

Redemption During the Period
Closing Units
17 INCOME FROM INVESTMENTS AND BALANCES

2020

WITH BANKS

3,790,392

2019

---------------Rupees---------------

Income from:
- Sukuk Certificates
- Government Securities
- Commercial Papers
- Profit and Loss Sharing (PLS) Account

13,669,698
40,901,747

- Term Deposits Receipts (TDR)

54,571,445
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2020
18 AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

245,000

245,000

Half Yearly Review of financial Statements

90,000

90,000

Other Services

25,000

25,000

Out of Pocket Expenses

58,969

62,190

418,969

422,190

Annual Audit Fee

Sindh Sales Tax

19

2019

---------------Rupees---------------

33,518

33,775

452,487

455,965

ADVANCE INCOME TAX
Advance income tax pertains to one of the fund which has merged during the period (786 Rising Star Fund). The Management Company has filed return of
income of the Fund for the years ended 30 June 2013, 2014 and 2015 claiming exemption from income under clause 99 of Pan I to the Second Schedule of
the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the Ordinance). The Additional Commissioner Inland (CIR) initially raised notices and then ordered to pay tax for the
above referred years by making certain addition to income of the Fund and exemption under clause 99 is available to only those collective investment schemes,
which distribute not less than 90% of its accounting income year amongst unit holders on year to year basis. Further, an amount of Rs 7.9 million was withheld
by tax department from the bank the Fund which is included in advance income tax on the statement of asset and liabilities. The Management Company of
the Fund filed an appeal to Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) (CIR Appeals) claiming that the additions made to the income by the Commissioner
were erroneous and the fund has distributed more than 90% of its income for each of the three years after finalization of financial statements of the Fund
after removal of suspension of the operations of the Fund, The CIR Appeals decided the appeal in favor of Management Company and remanded back the
case to CIR on the grounds that income tax officer has passed impugned orders in haste without objective appreciation of relevant provisions of law and
drew adverse inference on irrelevant assertions and directed CIR re-examine the case after giving appellant opportunity of being heard.
During the year ended 30 June 2018 amended tax orders under section 124(1) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, for the tax years 2013, 2014 and 2015
respectively were issued by the Commissioner Inland Revenue raising Nil tax demand in respect of said years. Further, the management is pursuing the
relevant authorities for the recovery of the aforementioned seized amount of Rs 7.9 million.

20

TOTAL EXPENSE RATIO
The total expense ratio (TER) of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2020 is 2.47% which includes 0.45% representing government levies on the Fund
such as federal excise duties and sales taxes, Workers' Welfare Fund, annual fee payable to the SECP, etc. This ratio is within the maximum limit of 2.5%
prescribed under the NBFC Regulations for a collective investment scheme categorized as an "Islamic Income Scheme".

21

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES/CONNECTED PERSONS
Related party/connected person include 786 Investments Limited being the Management Company, other collective investment schemes managed by the
Management company, MCB Financial Services Limited being the Trustee of the Fund, Directors and Officers of the Management Company, other associated
undertakings and unit holder's holding more than 10% units in the Fund or any other connected person.
Remuneration payable to the Management Company and Trustee is determined in accordance with the provisions of the NBFC Regulations 2008 and the
Trust Deed respectively.
The transactions with related parties are in the normal course of business and at contracted rates and terms determined in accordance with market rates.
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Aggregate transactions and balances with related parties, associated undertakings and connected person which are not disclosed elsewhere in the notes are
as follows:

2020
21.1 Transactions During the Period Ended

Note

2019

-------------Rupees-------------

786 Investments Limited - Management Company
Remuneration of the Management Company

11.1

7,847,917

7,098,308

Sales Tax on Remuneration to the Management Company

11.2

1,020,230

922,779

Accounting and Operational Charges

11.3

523,194

453,221

Issue of Units: 1,002,084 (2019: 1,267,921)

85,143,724

100,865,358

Redemption of Units: 548,779 (2019: 244,208)

45,000,000

20,000,000

MCB Financial Services Limited - Trustee
Remuneration of the Trustee

12.1

784,793

719,900

Sales Tax on Trustee fee

12.2

102,023

93,590

BRR Guardian Modaraba
(Connected Person Due to Group Company)
Issue of Units: 408,162 (2019: Nil)
Redemption of Units: 11,386 (2019: Nil)

34,864,260

-

1,000,000

-

BRR Investment Limited
(Connected Person Due to Group Company)
Issue of Units: 392 (2019: 822,516)
Redemption of Units: 385,132 (2019: 939,031)

31,581

65,372,484

32,445,621

78,457,282

Dawood Family Takaful Limited
(Connected Person Due to Group Company)
Issue of Units: 428,963 (2019: Nil)

36,590,937

Dawood Family Takaful Limited -Employees Contributory
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2020
Note

2019

-------------Rupees-------------

Provident Fund- Associate of Management Company
Issue of Units: 58,278 (2019: Nil)

4,971,152

-

First Dawood Investment Bank Limited
(Connected Person Due to Group Company)
Issue of Units: 1,991 (2019: 3,698,076)

160,223

301,201,673

Redemption of Units: 1,991 (2019: 3,698,076)

161,617

306,966,759

Issue of Units: 181,195 (2019: 41,415)

15,323,012

2,074,545

Redemption of Units: 173,604 (2019: Nil)

15,000,000

-

Issue of Units: 306,878 (2019: Nil Units)

26,708,027

-

Redemption of Units: 278,191 (2019: Nil Units)

24,500,000

-

11,942,371

-

2,500,000

-

First Dawood Investment Bank Limited -Employees
Contributory Provident Fund - Employee Benefit Fund of
Group Company

BRR Financial Services (Private) Limited
(Connected Person Due to Group Company)

Dawood International (Private) Limited
(Connected Person Due to Group Company)
Issue of Units: 137,777 (2019: Nil Units)
Redemption of Units: 28,068 (2019: Nil Units)
Directors and Key Management Personnel
of the Management Company
Issue of Units: 58,770 (2019: 144,382)

4,787,789

11,018,443

Redemption of Units: 34,255 (2019: 132,084)

2,856,000

10,964,546
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2020
Note

2019

-------------Rupees-------------

Other Connected Persons
Issue of Units: 2,926,708 (2019: 517,389)

246,614,009

Redemption of Units: 2,205,775 (2019: Nil)

193,374,854

41,421,839
-

21.2 Balance as at Period Ended
786 Investments Limited - Management Company
Remuneration Payable to the Management Company

11

757,933

627,856

Sales Tax Payable on Management Company's Remuneration

11

119,016

102,105

-786 Smart Fund

11

523,195

453,221

-First Dawood Mutual Fund

11

731,382

-

-786 Rising Star Fund

11

177,059

-

Accounting and Operational Charges

FED Payable on Management Company's Remuneration
Units Held: 1,825,406 (June 2019: 1,372,100)

6,513,679

1,797,106

147,858,793

110,362,959

MCB Financial Services Limited - Trustee
Remuneration Payable to the Trustee

12

75,795

62,511

Sales Tax Payable on Trustee Fee

12

9,854

8,129

BRR Guardian Modaraba
(Connected Person Due to Group Company)
32,139,018

Units Held: 396,776 (June 2019: Nil)

-

BRR Investment Limited
(Connected Person Due to Group Company)
-

Units Held: Nil (June 2019: 384,739)
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2020
Note

2019

-------------Rupees-------------

First Dawood Investment Bank Limited -Employees
Contributory Provident Fund- Employee Benefit Fund of
Group Company
Units Held: 480,710 (June 2019: 473,120)

38,937,756

38,054,757

Dawood Family Takaful Limited
(Connected Person Due to Group Company)
Units Held: 428,963 (June 2019: Nil)

34,746,251

-

4,720,537

-

2,323,666

-

8,886,417

-

Dawood Family Takaful Limited - Employees Contributory
Provident Fund - Associate of Management Company
Units Held: 58,278 (June 2019: Nil)
BRR Financial Services (Private) Limited
(Connected Person Due to Group Company)
Units Held: 28,687 (June 2019: Nil)
Dawood International (Private) Limited
(Connected Person Due to Group Company)
Units Held: 109,708 (June 2019: Nil)
Directors and Key Management Personnel
of the Management Company
Units Held: 656,460 (June 2019: 631,945)

53,173,552

50,829,625

117,589,284

69,065,176

Other Connected Persons
Units Held: 1,451,711 (June 2019: 858,661)

21.3 The transactions with related parties/connected persons are in the normal course of business at contracted rates and terms, determined in accordance with
market rates.
22

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - FAIR VALUES AND RISK MANAGEMENT

22.1 RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK
The Funds objective in managing risk is the creation and protection of unit holders value. Risk is inherent in the Funds activities, but it is managed through
monitoring and controlling activities which are primarily set up to be performed based on limits established by the Management Company, Fund's constitutive
documents and the regulations and directives of the SECP. These limits reflect the business strategy and market environment of the Fund as well as the level
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of the risk that Fund is willing to accept. The Board of Directors of the Management Company supervises the overall risk management approach within the
Fund. The Fund is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk arising from the financial instruments it holds.
The board's audit committee (BAC) oversees how management monitors compliance with the Fund's risk management policies and procedures, and reviews
the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Fund. The BAC is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal
audit undertakes regular reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the BAC.
Asset purchases and sales are determined by the Funds Investment Manager, who has been authorized to manage the distribution of the assets to achieve
the Funds investment objectives. Compliance with the target asset allocations and the composition of the portfolio is monitored by the Investment Committee.
In instances where the portfolio has diverged from target asset allocations, the Funds Investment Manager is obliged to take actions to rebalance the portfolio
in line with the established targets, within prescribed time limits.
22.2 Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market variables such as interest rates,
foreign exchange rates and equity prices.
(i)

Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in the market interest rates. As of June 30, 2019, the Fund
is exposed to such risk in respect of balances with banks and investment in debt investments. The balances with banks are subject to interest rates as declared
by the respective bank on periodic basis. Debt investments are subject to floating interest rates. The sensitivity of the income/(loss) for the year is the effect
of the assumed changes in interest rates on:
- the net interest income for one year, based on the floating rate financial assets held at the year end; and
- changes in fair value of investments for the year, based on revaluing fixed rate financial assets at the year end.
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of Fund's income/(loss) for the year to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other variables
held constant. In practice, the actual results may differ from the sensitivity analysis.

Effect on Income
2020
2019
-----------Rupees----------

Change in Basis Point
+ 100
- 100

63,475,434
(63,475,434)

44,811,423
(44,811,423)

Yield/interest rate sensitivity position for on balance sheet financial instruments is based on the earlier of contractual repricing or maturity date and for offbalance sheet instruments is based on the settlement date.
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------------------------------------------------- June 30, 2020 ------------------------------------------------Exposed to Yield/Interest Rate Risk

Yield/Effective
Interest Rate
(%)
On-Balance Sheet
Financial Assets
Balances with Banks
Investments
Accrued Income/Profit
Security Deposits

More than
Three Months
and Up to One
Year

Up to Three
Months

More than
One Year

Not Exposed to
Yield/Interest
Rate Risk

Total

------------------------------- (Rupees) -------------------------------

4.5 - 11
11 - 15

548,128,655
548,128,655

Financial Liabilities
Payable to 786 Investment Limited Management Company
Payable to MCB Financial Services Limited - Trustee
Payable to Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan
Unclaimed Dividend
Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities

On-Balance Sheet Gap

11,250,000
11,250,000

75,375,682
75,375,682

5,670,500
6,150,000
11,820,500

548,128,655
86,625,682
5,670,500
6,150,000
646,574,837

-

-

-

2,189,569

2,189,569

-

-

-

75,795
124,256

75,795
124,256

-

-

-

5,738,576
1,119,189
9,247,385

5,738,576
1,119,189
9,247,385

2,573,115

637,327,452

548,128,655

11,250,000

75,375,682

There is no off-balance sheet financial instrument that exist as at year ended June 30, 2020
------------------------------------------------- June 30, 2019 ------------------------------------------------Exposed to Yield/Interest Rate Risk
Yield/Effective
Interest Rate
(%)

More than
Three Months
and Up to One
Year

Up to Three
Months

More than
One Year

Not Exposed to
Yield/Interest
Rate Risk

Total

------------------------------- (Rupees) ------------------------------On-Balance Sheet
Financial Assets
Balances with Banks
Investments
Accrued Income/Profit
Security Deposits

3 - 11
6 - 10

331,391,795
331,391,795

Financial Liabilities
Payable to 786 Investment Limited Management Company
Payable to MCB Financial Services Limited - Trustee
Payable to Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan
Unclaimed Dividend
Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities
On-Balance Sheet Gap

76,722,434
76,722,434

6,271,592
100,000
6,371,592

331,391,795
116,722,434
6,271,592
100,000
454,485,821

-

-

-

1,081,077

1,081,077

-

-

-

62,511
354,912

62,511
354,912

-

-

-

-

-

-

369,962
657,443
2,525,905

369,962
657,443
2,525,905

3,845,687

451,959,916

331,391,795

There is no off-balance sheet financial instrument that exist as at year ended June 30, 2019
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(ii) Foreign Currency Risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.
The Fund does not have any financial instruments in foreign currencies and hence is not exposed to such risk at the year end.
(iii) Operational Risk
Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with the processes, technology and infrastructure
supporting the Funds operations either internally credit, market and liquidity risks such as those arising from legal and regulatory requirements and generally
accepted standards of investment management behavior. Operational risks arise from all of the Funds activities.
The Funds objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance limiting of financial losses and damage to its reputation with achieving its investment
objective of generating returns for investors.
The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls over operational risk rests with the board of directors. This responsibility
encompasses the controls in the following areas:
- requirements for appropriate segregation of duties between various functions, roles and responsibilities.
- requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions;
- compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements;
- documentation of controls and procedures;
- requirements for the periodic assessment of operational risks faced, and the adequacy of controls and procedures
to address the risks identified;
- ethical and business standards; and
- risk mitigation, including insurance where this is effective.
(iv) Unit Holder's Fund Risk Management
The capital of the Fund is represented by the net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units. The capital structure depends on the issuance and redemption
of units. The Funds objective when managing unit holders fund is to safeguard the Funds ability to continue as a going concern in order to seek maximum
preservation of unit holders fund and an optimum rate of return by investing in avenues having good credit rating and liquidity and to maintain a strong
capital base to support the development of the investment activities of the Fund.
The Fund has no restrictions or specific capital requirements on the subscription and redemption of units.
In accordance with the risk management policies, the Fund endeavors to invest the subscriptions received in appropriate investments while maintaining
sufficient liquidity to meet redemption requests, such liquidity being augmented by short-term borrowings or disposal of investments where necessary.
Under the NBFC regulations 2008, the minimum size of an open end scheme shall be one hundred million rupees at all the times during the life of the scheme.
22.3 Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Fund will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities. Liquidity risk arises
because of the possibility that the Fund could be required to pay its liabilities earlier than expected. The Fund is exposed to cash redemptions of its redeemable
units on a regular basis. Units are redeemable at the unit holders option based on the Funds net asset value per unit at the time of redemption calculated in
accordance with the Funds constitutive documents.
The table below summaries the maturity profile of the Fund's financial instruments. The analysis into relevant maturity groupings is based on the remaining
period at the end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity date. However, for equity securities at fair value through income statement, the period
in which those assets are assumed to mature is taken as the expected date on which these assets will be realized.
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2020

Within 1
Month

1 to 3 Months

3 to 12
Months

1 to 5 Years

More than 5
Years

Total

------------------------------------------- (Rupees) ------------------------------------------Financial Liabilities
Payable to 786 Investment Limited Management Company
Payable to MCB Financial Services Limited - Trustee
Payable to Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan
Unclaimed Dividend
Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities

2019

2,189,569

-

-

-

-

2,189,569

75,795

-

-

-

-

5,738,576
1,119,189

124,256
-

-

-

-

75,795
124,256
5,738,576
1,119,189

9,123,129

124,256

-

-

-

9,247,385

Within 1
Month

1 to 3
Months

3 to 12
Months

1 to 5 Years

More than 5
Years

Total

------------------------------------------- (Rupees) ------------------------------------------Financial Liabilities
Payable to 786 Investment Limited Management Company
Payable to MCB Financial Services Limited - Trustee
Payable to Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan
Unclaimed Dividend
Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities

1,081,077

-

-

-

-

1,081,077

62,511

-

-

-

-

62,511

369,962
657,443

354,912
-

-

-

-

354,912
369,962
657,443

2,170,993

354,912

-

-

-

2,525,905

22.4 Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the Fund by failing to discharge its obligation. The Funds
policy is to enter into financial contracts with reputable counter parties in accordance with the internal guidelines, offering document and regulatory
requirements. The table below analyses the Fund's maximum exposure to credit risk:

2020

2019

------------ (Rupees) -----------548,128,655
331,391,795
86,625,682
116,722,434

Balances with banks *
Investments
Accrued income/profit

5,670,500

6,271,592

Security deposits

6,150,000

100,000

* These balances are placed with Commercial Banks having credit rating between A1+ and A1 in accordance with the offering document as approved by
SECP.
Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in economic or industry factors affect the group of counterparties whose aggregate credit exposure is
significant in relation to the Funds total credit exposure. The table below analyses the Fund's concentration of credit risk by industrial distribution:
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2020

2019

% of Instruments

Amortized Cost
Balances with Banks

86.35%

73.95%

1.77%
4.20%
2.36%
5.31%
0.00%

1.18%
5.91%
3.35%
6.68%
8.93%

100%

100%

Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income
Cable and Electric Goods
Commercial Bank
Engineering
Fertilizers
Power Generation & Distribution

Credit Quality of Financial Assets
The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings or to historical information
about counterparty default rates:

Name of Bank

23

Rating agency

Latest published rating
Short-Term

Long-Term

Percentage of bank balance

Bank Islami Pakistan Limited

PACRA

A1

A+

27.02%

Dubai Islamic Bank Limited

JCR-VIS

A1+

AA

72.98%

JS Bank Limited

PACRA

A1+

AA-

0.00%

Habib Metropolitan Bank Ltd

PACRA

A1+

AA+

0.00%

Albaraka Bank Limited

JCR-VIS

A1

A+

0.00%

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The fair value of financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties. The following methods are used to estimate the fair values of instruments:
Debt Securities
These are valued at the rates notified by the Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan (MUFAP) in accordance with the SECP's Circular 1 of 2009. The said
circular prescribes a valuation methodology which in case of currently traded securities, is based on weighted average prices during the 15 days preceding
the valuation date and in case of thinly or non-traded securities, on the basis of discount coupon method which takes into consideration credit risk and
maturities of the instruments.
Government Securities
These are valued by reference to the quotations obtained from the PKRV rate sheet on the Reuters page.
The fair value of other assets and liabilities of the Fund approximate their carrying amount largely due to short term maturities of these instruments.

23.1 Fair Value Hierarchy
The Fund uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique:
Level 1: quoted prices in active markets for identical assets.
Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3: techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable market data.
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As at June 30, 2020, the Fund held the following financial instruments measured at fair value:

Level 1
Level 3
Total
Level 2
----------------------------------- (Rupees) ----------------------------------2020
Fair value through other comprehensive
income

-

71,625,682
71,625,682

15,000,000
15,000,000

86,625,682
86,625,682

Level 1
Level 2
Level 3
Total
----------------------------------- (Rupees) ----------------------------------2019
Fair value through other comprehensive
income

24

-

101,722,434
101,722,434

15,000,000
15,000,000

116,722,434
116,722,434

SUPPLEMENTARY NON FINANCIAL INFORMATION

24.1 Pattern of Unit Holding

As at 30 June 2020
Number of
Unit
Holders

Investment
Amount

As at 30 June 2019
Percentage
Investment

Number of
Unit
Holders

Rupees
Individuals
Associated Companies & Directors
Insurance Companies
Retirement Funds
Others

654
11
3
8
19
695

233,983,218
318,076,030
4,124,437
38,552,208
31,767,847
626,503,739

Investment
Amount

Percentage
Investment

Rupees
37.35%
50.77%
0.66%
6.15%
5.07%
100%

218
7
1
9
5
240

168,725,386
230,088,754
2,807,685
34,164,342
9,905,606
445,691,773

37.86%
51.63%
0.63%
7.67%
2.22%
100%

24.2 Details of Brokers
Note
BROKERS
Adam Securities Limited
Alfalah Securities Limited
Axis Global Limited
Foundation Securities
Habib Metropolitan Financial Securities Limited
IGI Financial Securities
JS Global Capital Limited
Pearl Securities
BIPL Securities Limited

2020
2019
------------ (Rupees) -----------16,209
23,810
31,748
17,490
1,031
24,145
3,377
20,988
138,797

The current year brokerage expense are paid to the brokers of FDMF and 786RSF due to Merger of the fund.
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24.3 Details of Investment Committee

Name of Member
Ms. Tara Uzra Dawood
Mr. Noman Shakir
Mr. Talal Ismail Pasha*
Mr. Muhammad Abbas

Designation
Chief Executive Officer
Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary
Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary
AVP Finance

Qualification
Doctorate of Juridical Science
ACMA
ACMA
MBA Finance

Experience
16 years
10 years
15 years
20 years

*Mr. Talal Ismail Pasha resigned on November 21, 2019.
24.4 Details of Fund Manager
Mr. Abbas is working as AVP Finance and in addition, has been designated as acting Fund Manager. He is managing the 786 Smart Fund which is the surviving
fund after the merger of 786 Rising Star Fund (786RSF), First Dawood Mutual Fund (FDMF) with and into 786 Smart Fund (786SF).
24.5 Details of Board of Director's meetings

Name of Director
Ms. Shafqat Sultana
Ms. Tara Uzra Dawood
Ms. Charmaine Hidayatullah *
Mr. Tahir Mehmood
Syed Farhan Abbas
Syed Shabahat Hussain
Ahmed Salman Munir

September 23
2019
Present
Present
Present
Present
Present
Present
Present

October 22,
2019
Present
Present
Absent
Present
Present
Present
Present

February 28,
2020
Present
Present
Absent
Present
Present
Present
Present

April 23,
2020
Present
Present
Present
Present
Present
Present
Present

*Leave of absence has been granted to absentees of mettings held during the year.
25

IMPACT OF COVID-19 (CORONA VIRUS)
The pandemic of COVID-19 that has rapidly spread all across the world has not only endangered human lives but has also impacted the economy. On March
24, 2020, the Government announced a temporary lock down as a measure to reduce the spread of the COVID19. The Fund's operations were not affected
as it were operated under all necessary Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) issued by the Government to ensure safety of employees and smooth and
adequate continuation of its business. Due to this, management has assessed the accounting implications of these developments on these financial statements,
however, according to managements assessment, there is no significant accounting impact of the effects of COVID-19 on these financial statements.

26

GENERAL

26.1 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee.
26

DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE
These financial statements were authorized for issue by the board of directors of the Management Company on September 28, 2020.

For 786 Investments Limited.
(Management Company)

Chief Finicial Officer

Chief Executive Officer
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Year

Net assets (Rs in million)
Net Asset Value per units (Rs.)
Offer price per unit
Redemption price per unit
Number of units
Net Profit / (loss) for the year (Rs in million)
Income Distribution (Rs in million)
Final
Interim

Average annual return (%)

2020

2019

2018

2017

2016

2015

626.50
81.00
81.81
81.00
7,734,563
50.32

445.69
80.43
81.23
80.43
5,541,116
50.43

334.72
88.31
89.19
88.31
3,790,392
35.11

247.74
78.93
79.72
78.93
3,138,834
35.00

155.98
75.98
76.74
75.98
2,052,882
38.20

428.17
82.29
83.11
82.29
5,203,406
27.50

49.34
-

80.54
-

26.87
-

31.97
-

24.77
-

32.68%

6.41%

10.93%

11.12%
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PROXY ISSUED BY THE FUND
The proxy voting policy of Fund, duly approved by Board of Directors of the Management Company, is available
on the website of 786 Investments Limited i.e. http://www.786investments.com A detailed information regarding
actual proxies voted by the Management Company in respect of the fund is also available without charge, upon
request, to all unit holders.
The details of summarized proxies voted are as follows:
Resolutions

For

Against

Abstain

Number (%ages)

NIL

NIL

NIL
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